
Minutes 
Environmental Protection Committee 

2 Martin Luther King, Jr. Drive, S. E. 
Suite 1252 East Tower 

Atlanta, GA  30334 
 

February 29, 2012 
 

Attending: 
 
Committee Members Staff Members 
Ray Lambert, Chairman Mark Williams 
Steven Woodruff, Vice Chairman Todd Holbrook 
William Bagwell Homer Bryson 
Dennis Billew Spud Woodward 
Walter Hudson Dan Forster 
Philip Watt, Board Chairman, ex-officio Becky Kelley 
 Dave Crass 
 Lauren Curry 
Board Members Kyle Pearson 
Bill Carruth Jac Capp 
Rob Leebern Linda MacGregor 
Aaron McWhorter Ben Stowers 
Mark Smith Jim Ussery 
Loyce Turner Doralyn Kirkland 
Philip Wilheit Connie  Buck 
 Eddie Henderson 
 Zachary Harris 
Visitors Cathy Barnette 
Jim Scarbrough, Gwinnett Water Resources Mary Ann Evans 
Bryan Tolar, Georgia Agribusiness Council Hellen Hearris 
Ronny Just, Georgia Power  
Lauren Bush, Georgia Forestry Commission  
Debbie Phillips, Georgia Industry Environmental Coalition  
David Word, Joe Tanner & Associates  
Chris Manganeillo, Georgia River Network  
Carolyn Part, Oglethorpe Power  
  
  
  
 



Minutes – Environmental Protection Committee 
February 29, 2012 
Page 2 
 
 
 The February 29, 2012 meeting of the Environmental Protection Committee was called to order 
by Board Chairman Philip Watt. 
 
 Chairman Watt called on Ray Lambert, Chairman, Environmental Protection Committee, who 
stated that EPD staff would present two action items and two briefings.  He further stated that EPD 
Director Jud Turner was at the Capitol and hoped to return in time to give a division update.  
 
 Mr. Lambert called on Jac Capp for presentation of the proposed Grant Criteria for the Georgia 
Diesel Engine Retrofit Project Grant, Chapter 391-3-21-.13. 
 
 Mr. Capp stated that the primary purpose of this grant is to reduce particulate matter emissions 
from heavy-duty diesel engines on school busses located in PM2.5 nonattainment and/or maintenance 
areas.  He further stated that the current grant program provides funding for purchasing and installing 
emission reduction technologies only.  He added that this additional subprogram will provide funding to 
public school systems to pay up to 80% of the cost of purchasing and installing emissions control 
technologies (i.e., retrofitting), up to 75% of the cost to repower or rebuild school bus engines, and up 
to 50% of the cost of early replacement of existing school buses. 
 
 Mr. Capp stated that eligible school systems must be located in PM2.5 nonattainment or 
maintenance areas in Georgia.  He further stated that the grants are funded through the Department of 
Transportation and Federal Highway Administration’s Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) 
Program.  He added that the total available funding for this new sub-program is $4 million. 
 
 Mr. Capp stated that he would like to request the Committee recommend that the Board 
approve the item as presented. 
 
 A motion was made by Mr. Woodruff, seconded by Mr. Hudson and carried unanimously that 
the Committee recommends that the Board approve the proposed Grant Criteria for the Georgia Diesel 
Engine Retrofit Project Grant, Chapter 391-3-21-.13, as presented.  (Proposed Grant Criteria attached 
hereto and made a part hereof) 
 
 Mr. Capp stated that the next item for consideration was action on proposed Grant Criteria for 
CMAQ Unnecessary Idle Control by Electrification (UICE) Project Grant, Chapter 391-3-21-.16.  He 
further stated that the primary purpose of this grant is to electrify truck parking spaces located in or 
within close proximity (10 miles) to PM2.5 nonattainment and/or maintenance areas in Georgia.  He 
added that electrified parking spaces will enable trucks to connect to the electric grid for electric power 
so that the primary diesel engine can be shut down. 
 
 Mr. Capp stated that this grant is funded through the Georgia Department of Transportation and 
Federal Highway Administration CMAQ Program.  He further stated that the total available funding for 
this new sub-program is $2.5 million.  He added that grant recipients must provide at least a 20% match. 
 
 Mr. Capp stated that he would like to request the Committee recommend that the Board 
approve the item as presented. 
 



Minutes – Environmental Protection Committee 
February 29, 2012 
Page 3 
 
 
 A motion was made by Mr. Woodruff, seconded by Mr. Billew and carried unanimously that the 
Committee recommend that the Board approve the proposed Grant Criteria for CMAQ Unnecessary Idle 
Control by Electrification Project Grant, Chapter 391-3-21-.16, as presented.  (Proposed Grant Criteria 
attached hereto and made a part hereof) 
 
 Mr. Capp stated that the next item would be a briefing on the proposed amendments to Rules 
for Air Quality Control, Chapter 391-3-1, pertaining to miscellaneous changes and updates.  He further 
stated that EPD would be soliciting public input and holding a public hearing on April 16, 2012, and 
expects to present the following amendments to the Board for action at the June meeting: 
 
Rule 391-3-1-.01(nnnn), the definition of “Procedures for Testing and Monitoring Sources of Air 
Pollutants,” is amended to reference the most recent revision of the manual. 
 
Rule 391-3-1-.02(2)(c), “Incinerators,” is being revised to exempt certain incinerators from the State 
rule that are subject to more stringent, State-adopted Federal standards. 
 
Rule 391-3-1-.02(2)(www), “Sewage Sludge Incineration Units Constructed on or Before October 14, 
2010,” is being added to comply with Federal guidelines to impose limits on emissions of nine pollutants 
from existing Sewage Sludge Incineration (SSI) units. 
 
Rule 391-3-1-.02(8), “Prevention of Significant Deterioration of Air Quality,” is being amended to 
incorporate the most recent version of the Federal regulations by reference. 
 
Rule 391-3-1-.02(8)(b), “New Source Performance Standards,” is being revised to incorporate the new 
Performance Standards and to include dates of Federal regulations incorporated by reference for 
existing standards to ensure consistency between the State and Federal programs.   
 
Rule 391-3-1-.02(9)(b), “Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants,” is being updated with new 
emissions standards and to include dates of Federal regulations incorporated by reference for existing 
standards. 
 
Rule 391-3-1-.03(6), “Exemptions,” is being amended to include a new permit exemption for small 
modifications at existing quarries that are not major sources. 
 
 Mr. Lambert called on Linda MacGregor, Chief, Watershed Protection Branch, to present a 
briefing on the proposed amendments to Rules for Water Quality Control, Chapter 391-3-6, pertaining 
to major spills. 
 
 Ms. MacGregor stated that under existing Rule 391-3-6-.05, a single daily excursion of specific 
permitted effluent limits for Publicly Owned Treatment Works (POTW) triggers requirements for 
publication of a notice in the legal organ of the County where the major spill occurs, establishing a 
monitoring program and providing notice to downstream public water supplies.  She further stated that 
these actions are appropriate for major spills and daily excursions can warrant these actions when the 
effluent limits are conventional secondary limits; a daily excursion in those instances may have 
significant impact.  She added that for POTW’s with very stringent limits, a daily excursion does not 



Minutes – Environmental Protection Committee 
February 29, 2012 
Page 4 
 
 
always warrant the same actions; therefore, EPD is proposing revision of their emergency action 
requirements for POTW’s. 
 
 Ms. MacGregor stated that the proposed amendments will modify Rule 391-3-6-.05(2), 
definition of a “major spill.”  She further stated that the Georgia Association of Water Professionals 
(GAWP) and the RiverKeepers have participated in the revision of this Rule change and agreed upon the 
language.  She added that this modification is designed to reduce the overall operational cost for 
POTW’s and is not expected to result in additional costs for DNR or the regulatory community. 
 
 Ms. MacGregor stated that the proposed amendments will be public noticed and a public 
hearing will be advertised and held.  She further stated that she anticipates bringing the proposed 
amendments to the Board for action at the May meeting. 
 
 Mr. Lambert stated that Director Turner had not returned from the Capitol and that the Division 
update would be given upon his return, possibly under Commissioner’s Report during the full Board 
meeting. 
 
 There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned. 


